SINGH CHHABRA & CO.

INDIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

10,
THE MEMBERS OF SWAMI MEDISOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SWAMI MEDISOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED. which comprisc the Balance Sheet as at 31/03/2025, the Statement of Profit and [Loss. the
cash flow statement for the vear then ended. and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion and to the best ol our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
atoresaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 ol'the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. ("Ind
AS") other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
al 31/03/2025, and its Loss and it's cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (§As) specilicd under section
FI3010Y of the Companies Act, 2013, Qur responsibilities under those Standards are [urther described
inthe Auditor's Responsibifitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Lthics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
our opinion.

Taformation Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board's Report. Business Responsibility Report. Corporate Governance
and Sharcholder's Information. but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express amy fonmn of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ol the standalone financial statements. our responsibility is 1o read the
other infurmation and, in doing so. consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone fnancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

othierwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude that there
is @ material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
vovernance. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance (TCWG)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in Section [34(5) of the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) with respect 1o the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position , financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Accounting
Standards specilied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance ol adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions ot the Act for saleguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and deteeting
[taucs and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal tinancial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
conipleteness of the accounting records. relevant 10 the preparation and presentation ol the linancial
statements that give a true and [air view and are free [tom material misstatement. whether due to fraud
QF CITOT.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
1o continue as 4 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and vsing the
going concern basis ol accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but o do so.

The Board ol Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to ebtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterents as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an auditor’s report thal
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ol assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
avorepate. they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions ol users taken on the
basis ol these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we excreise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

e [dentifv and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due o fraud
or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invelve collusion. foreery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Companies Act. 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls svstem in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o [valuate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness ol management's use of the going concern basis ol accounting and.
hased on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern.
[ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 10




modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. | lowever. future events or conditions may cause the Company 10 cease 1o continue
as @ going concern,

* Lvaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the finaneial statements, including the
disclosures. and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
saleguards.

Irom the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters thal
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therelore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matlers in our audilor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences ol
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Scetion 143 (3) ol the Act. we report thai:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary [or the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

t¢) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss. and the cash flow statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aloresaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014,

(e O the basis of the written representations received from the directors a< on 31/03/2025 1aken
on record by the Board of Directors. none ol the directors is disqualified as 31/03/2028 [rom
heing appointed s a director in terms of Seetion 164 (2) of the Actl.

(1 With respeet to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness ol such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure A",

(2) With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
1T of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

. T'he Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its linancial
position,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material loreseeable losses.




iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that. to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, ne funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that. to the best of it’s knowledge and belicel, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™). with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the company shall, whether.
dircetly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee. security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(¢) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances. nothing has come to their notice that has caused them 10 believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
soliware for maintaining of'its books of'account which bas a feature of recording audit tail (edin
log) facility in terms of the Proviso to Rule 3( 1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevan! transactions recorded in the
soltware. Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance ol
audit trail feature being tempered with.

vit.  As required by the Campanies (Auditors” Report) Order, 2020¢"the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, We give in the Annexure “B” statements on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the order. 10 the extent applicable.

FORSINGH CHHABRA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Reg No. :0012127C

Date; 24" May 2025
Place:; YLD
HHARISH KUMAR
Partner
M.No. : 300104
UDIN : 25500 104BMLXBI4904



“Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of SWAMI MEDISOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clausce (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SWAMI MEDISOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED as of March 31. 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone linarcial
statements of the Company for the year ended on thal date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating elfectively for ensuring the orderly and efTicient conduct of its business,
meluding adherence to company”s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timel
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial conirols over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Finaneial Reporiing (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing. issued by ICAT and deemed (o be preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act.
2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. both applicable o an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. ‘Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrals over
linancial reporting was established and maintained and it such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 10 obtaim audit evidence amount the adequacy of the internal
linancial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit ol internal
linancial controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
operating elfectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
upon on the auditor's judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ol the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate 1o provide u basis [Ur
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over linancial reporting.,

Meaning ol Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation ol linancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over tinancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally aceepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations ol management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ol unauthorized acquisition. use




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material misstatements due to
cerroror fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections ol any evaluation of the internal financial
contrals over linancial reporting to future periods are subject io the risk that the internal financial control
over linancial reporting may become inadequate hecause ol changes in conditions. or that the degree of
compliance with the poelicies or procedures may deteriorate.,

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all nuiterial respects, an adequate internal financial controls svstem
over linancial reporting and such internal [inancial controls over financial reporting were operating
clfectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
estublished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 1he
Guidanee Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issues by the Institute
ol Chartered Accountants of India.

FORSINGH CHITABRA & CO.
{Chartered Accountants)
Ree No, :0012127C

Date : 240 May.2025 HARISIH KUMAR CHHABRA
Mace : DELLL Partner
M.Nao. ; 500104
UDIN : 25500104BM LA BI4906



ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SWAMI MEDISOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LINMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2025.

| Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in the Independent
Auditors” Report|

i
(i)

(b)

{c})

(d)

(e)

i,

A.The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment.

13. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

All the Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous vear
inaccordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which. in our opinion. is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature ol its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verilication.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties. and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property.
plant and Lquipment (including Right of Use assets) and its intangible assets. Accordingly. the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According te the information and explanations given to us. no proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act.
1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph 3(1) (e) ol the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company has a system ol physical verification of inventory whereby all items of inventory are
physically verified over a period of time, Discrepancies. if any between physical stock and book
records are adjusted in the books as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations
are carried out. In our opinion, the frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such
verilication is reasonable and appropriate. Discrepancies noted on perpetual physical verification
carried out during the year were not material and have been adjusted in books of accounts.

(b) 'This is not applicable since no working capital limit has been sanctioned in aggregate exceeding
Five Crores.

According to the information explanation provided to us. the Company has not made any investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured
or unsecured. to companies, firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence. the
requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opmion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not
cither directly or indirectly. granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the
director is interested. in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has
not made investments through more than two layers of investment companics in accordance with the
provisions of' seetion 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.




Vi

Vil.
(a)

(h)

viil.

(a)

(h)

(d)

()

(0

(a)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given (o us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public withm the meaning of sections 73. 74.75 and 76 ol the Act and
the rules framed there under.

Since the Company has not commenced commereial produetion, in our opinion. the provisions of ¢lause
3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given (o us and the records of the Company examined
by us. in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax. provident fund.
employees’ state insurance. income-tax, sales-tax. service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise. value
added tax, cess have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authoritics in all cases
during the vear.

According 1o the information and explanation given 1o us and the records of the Company examined
by us. there are no ducs of income tax. goods and service tax. customs duty. cess and any other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given o us. there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear
in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence. the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

In our opmion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures. we
report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or [inancial institution or
government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according 1o the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of
term loans during the yvear have been applied [or the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us. and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination ol the standalone financial statements of the Company. we report that no Tunds
raised on short-term basis have been used 1or long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company. we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account ol or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us. we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its securitics,

Joint ventures or associate companies.

['he Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including,
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) ol the Order
are not applicable 1o the Company.




(b)

xi

Nill.

Niv,

XV

(&)

(h)

(¢)

v,

(a)

(h)

(d)

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
ol the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully. partly or optionally convertible debentures during the vear. Accordingly. the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit. examination of the books and records of the Company. carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India. and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
nor on the Company.

We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31. 2025, accordingly
the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company (‘iuring the course of audit. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)¢) ol the Order
is not applicable to Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (¢) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the records
ol the Company. transactions with the related parties are in compliance with scctions 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
stateiments as required by the applicable accounting standards,

[n our opinion and based on our examination. the Company does not require to comply with provision
alsection 138 of the Act. Ilence. the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xiv) (a) to (b) ol the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and
henee, provisions of scetion 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company. Accordingly. the provisions
stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion. the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank
ol Tndia Act. 1934 and accordingly. the provisions stated in paragraph elause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order arc
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion. the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing FFinance
activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. [lence. the reporting
under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(h) ol the Order are not applicable to the Company

The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. ] lence. the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(e) ol the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company does not have any CIC as part ol its group. Hence the provisions stated in paragraph
clause 3 xvi (d) of the order are not applicable to the Company




XV,

xViil,

NN

NN

NN

Date : 24™ May,2025

Place : D=1

According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has incurred cash losses in the
current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. ‘The details of the same are as
lollows:

(Amount in millions)

Particulars ‘ 31.03.2025 © 31.032004 ‘

- Cash Profit / {Loss_cﬂ ‘ (5.82) (7.83)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial
ratios, ageing and expected date of realisation ol financial assets and pavment of liabilities. other
mlormation accompanying the standalone financial statements. our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans. we are of the opinion that ne material uncertainty exists as on the
date ol audit report and the Company is capable of mecting its labilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions ol seetion 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company. lence. the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
stalements. Accordingly. no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

FOR SINGH CHITABRA & CO.

HARISH KUMX]
Pariner
M.No. : 500104
UDIN : 25500104BMLXBI4906



Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Baliance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
[Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particalars Mt 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5{a) 302 347
Right to use asset 5{8) 4,93 6,95
Goodwill 6 9.00 9.00
Financial assets
Gther financial assets Fi 0.43 0.39
Defarred Tax Assets (net) 8 0.14 .
Man current Lax assets (net) 9 - 0.01
Total non-current assets 17.52 19.82
Current assets
Inve ntories - 10 47.41 28,30
Financial asspts
Trade receivables 11 55.72 37.45
Cash and cash equivalents 12 28,28 16.89
Other current assets 13 1.92 0.04
Tatal current assers 133,33 .68
Tatal assots 150.85 102.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 0.10 0.10
Oiher equity 15 (18.36) {12.27)
Total equity {18.26) (12.17)
Liabilities
Won-current liabilities 5
Financial Habilities 4 B
Horrowsgs 16 B80.00 -
L liavknlin 17 3.55 5.76
Provisions 18 0.22 0.13
Total non-current liabilities 83.77 5.89
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 16 19.45 77.45
Lease liabiities 17 21 L9
Trade payables 19
i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.43 -
ii} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 29.72 6.42
Other financial liabilities 20 33.20 21.20
Other current labilitivs 21 0.34 1.80
Total current liabilities 85.35 108.78
Total liabilities 169.12 114.67
Total equity and liabilities 150.85 102.50
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-46
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As pie our report of even date
Singh Chhabra & Co . For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered AcCountants : Swaml Msdlwl‘uuom Private Limited
4 Bzmm'b&ms

Firm Registration No,: 012127C

Fﬂﬁlﬂﬁmm QM“’PNW‘L‘

"i . ' San
M wlmhr Singh Sandeep Malhotra
mWImnor Director
8 DIN:10B01816

Harish K. Chh

Partner

Membership Mo, 500104

Place: Delhi Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 24 May 2025 Date: 24 May 2025

Date: 24 May 2025

UBIN 255ccloYami g Th966




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Emplayee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses -
Total expenses

Loss before tax

Tax expense

Deferred tax

Total income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan

Total

ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
l'otal comprehensive income/expense for the year

Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of share: INR 10 (31 March 2024 +INR 10))

Basic (INR)
Diluted (INR)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an in tegral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
Singh Chhabra & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 012127C

Harish K. C
Partner

Place: Delhi
Date: 24 May 2025

Forthe year ended 31  For the year ended 31

Som . March 2025 March 2024
2 255.35 189.23
23 0.17 0.05
255,52 189.28
24 254.10 180.97
25 (19.11) (5.35)
26 11.38 5.61
27 9.18 10.18
28 2.60 2.43
29 3.60 418
261.75 198.02
(6.23) [8.74)
30 (0.14) ;
(0.14) :
{6.09) (8.74)
- (0.01)
N (0.01)
7 (0.01)
(6.09) (8.75)
31 (608.59) (873.53)
(608.59) (873.53)
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Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025.
[Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Liss before tax

Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance cost
Interest income
Interest income on income tax refunds
Provision for expected credit loss

Changes in working capital
[Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
Increase in invenlories

Decrease/{Increase) in trade receivables
{Decrease)/increase in other current liabilities
Increase in other financial liabilities

Decrease in other current assets

Increase in provisions and employee benefits
Cash generated in operations '
Income tax paid (includes advance tax)

Net cash flows generated in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including movement in CWIP and capital advances
Interest received

Net cash flows ger 1/ {used) in ir g activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds fram short-term borrowings

Principal paid on lease liabilities

Finance costs paid

Net cash flows generated/(used) in financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 12)
Balances with banks
On current accounts
Cash on hand
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(6.23) (8.74)
2.60 2.43
9.18 10.18
(0.17) (0.05)
. (0.00)
(0.01) 0.09
5.37 3.91
23.73 (1.72)
(19.11) (5.35)
{18.26) 5.92
{1.46) {0.15)
12.00 11.08
(1.89) {0.01)
0.09 0.06
0.46 13,74
0.01 0.08
0.47 13,82
(0.12 (0.67)
0.17 0.02
0.05 (0.65)
22.00 7.00
(1.92) (1.60)
(9.18) (10.18)
10.90 (a.78)
1141 8.40
16.89 8.49
28.28 16.89
27.88 16.03
0.40 0.86
28,28 16.89




Recanciliation of the movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

B For the year ended For the year ended

. 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

-Opening balance

Cash credit facility o .

Loan from related parties 70.45 70.45

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 8.79 8.79

Total 79.24 79.24

Movement " B

Cash flows-cash credit Facility " - -

Cash flows-related party loan 29.00 7.00

Interest paid 6.82 (1.85)

Interest expenses 5.18 10.18

Closing Balance

Cash credit facility - -

Loan from related parties 99.45 77.45

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 24.80 17.12
124,25 94.57

Total

1. The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, statement of cash flows as

specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 (as amended).

ash and cash equivalent comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and depasits with banks with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of depasits.
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2.C
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
CIN: U51909PB2021PTC053818
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Chartered Accountants
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Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025.
(Amountin Millions, unless otherwise stated) i

»

(A) Equity share capital ( Refer Note No.14)

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 1st April 2023 0.10
Add: issued during the year .
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.10
Balance as at 1st April 2024 0.10
Add: issued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.10

(B) Other equity ( Refer Note No.15)

Particulars Reserve and surplus
# Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2023° (3.52)
Changes during the year

Loss for the year (8.74)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) (0.01)
Total comprehensive income for the year (8.75)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (12.27)
Balance as at 1 April 2024 (12.27)
Changes during the year
Loss for the year (6.09)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) -
Total comprehensive income for the year (6.09)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (18.36)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-46
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
Singh Chhabra & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 012127C 51 PTC053818 |
For Swami Medisolutions &Mﬂﬁ& am’ Madicolutions Private Limited |
e N
’ ‘Tlmw
- & ? (TP
Director j owdeep M d‘w
Harish K. Chhabra Jaswinder Singh Sandeep Malhotra

Partner Whole-time Director Director
Membership No: 500104 DIN: 09238268 DIN:10801816
Place: Delhi Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad

Date: 24 May 2025 Date: 24 May 2025 Date: 24 May 2025




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
Swami Medisolutions Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company incorporated in India

on July 13, 2021, having its registered office at Shop (Comm) Medicine Market, Katra Sher Singh 1/S Hall
Bazar G.P.O, Amritsar, Amritsar, Punjab, India, 143001.

The Company is a subsidiary of Entero Healthcare Solution Limited. The Holding company of Entero
Healthcare Limited is listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) & Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The
Company is in the business of distributions and marketing of pharmaceutical products, Surgical Products

and other allied services.

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2015,
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and on a going concern

basis

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
material items which are measured on an alternative basis, required by relevant Ind AS, on each

reporting date:-
¢ Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial

instruments);
* Employee’s net Defined Benefit (assets/liability) as per actuarial valuation; and
e Liabilities for Share-based payments arrangements.

-

These financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet at 31% March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended 31* March 2025 and 31* March 2024;

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires

a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 24 May , 2025.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest million, unless otherwise indicated.




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Functional and presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and judgements that affect the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date, reported amounts of Revenue and Expenses for the year
and disclosure of Contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and Judgements used in
the accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant
facts and circumstances at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates, if any, are recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimates are revised

and in any future years affected.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements, is included in the following notes:

* Note (5A): Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment,

» Note (5B): Determination of discount rate and lease term for the purpose of discounting of lease
payments.

* Note (8): recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilized.

* Note (9): Income taxes: Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the
purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected
to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions

* Note (30 (VIl)): Measurement of Defined benefit Obligations: assumptions include salary escalation
rate, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and mortality rates.

* Note(31): Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

* Note(35): Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities. When the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities cannot be measured on quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques along with assistance from valuation experts.

* Note(36(A(i))): measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivable and loans:
Key assumptions in determining the weighted average loss rate.

* Note(39): Impairment of goodwill: Key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts such as estimated
long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow
projections take into account past experience and represent management’s best estimate about future

developments.




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments ;t fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company’s management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized into different levels within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the level

of inputs used in the valuation techniques as set out below.
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included in level one and Valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable,
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is based on unobservable market data.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
e it is expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal

operating cycle, which is defined to'be of twelve months.

e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

e jtis expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

e it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified

as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
s jtis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's'
normal operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e jtis due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
s the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classificaticn.

Current liabilities-include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are

classified as non-current.
NOTE 3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS

103, Business Combinations. At the acquisition date, identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are measured at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition date fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, The
consideration transferred is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.

Where the consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill. Alternatively, in case of a bargain purchase
wherein the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, the Group after assessing fair value of all identified assets and
liabilities, record the difference as a gain in other comprehensive income and accumulate the gain in

equity as capital reserve.

In case of business combinations involving entities under common control, the above policy does not
apply. Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are accounted at their
carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to harmonise
accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital of transferor
entity or business-is recognized as capital reserve under equity.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if, it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item, will flow to the Company and the cost item can

2

be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use and present value of estimated costs of dismantling




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited ,

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts, rebates, input
tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have significant
costs and different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of

property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with that expenditure will flow to the Company and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of the Property , Plant
and Equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized

up to the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is

derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the cost of items less there estimated
residual values, on straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives, which is in line with
the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Period

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipmen_f 5

Vehicle )

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.3 Goodwill:

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, in accordance

with Ind AS 103,

Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGUs or group of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

3.4 Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax
credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization

period is changed prospectively.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (years)
Computer software 3-5




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.5 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers, generally on delivery of
goods at the agreed point of delivery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third
parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue also excludes taxes

collected from customers.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90 days.
Other Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognized on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or

collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognized upon completion of promised services to customers. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives,
performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar
items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery

of consideration is probable and determinable.

3.6 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, re;pectively.

a) Current Income Tax:
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and

any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. Current tax Assets and
liabilities represents the best estimates of the amounts expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Tax Laws and Tax rates used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the, extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which

they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when probability of

future taxable profit improve.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

3.7 Intangible Asset Under Development

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone-according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalized, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

3.8 Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(i) the Company has substantially all of the économic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
At commencement or on modification of the contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices: However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to separate non
lease component and account for the lease and non lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and estimate an present value of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over
the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-
of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as

a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option
to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made
and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect

revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and in the statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases of properties

that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.9 Inventories

The inventory comprises traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived at based on actual cost of the “batch” which comprises cost
of purchase and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

-

Provision is made’ for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.

3.10 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non
financial asset or a Company of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may

be impaired.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and presented in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are accompanied together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of of assets (the

"Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).
3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company Kas a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The Company creates a provision when there-is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.

3,12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand , cash at banks and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and bank overdrafts are shcwn within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance

sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

3.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.
(A) Financial assets

(i) Recognition and Initial measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial
asset not “at fair-value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive ir.come; or

c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the related cash flows.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit
and loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included

in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest and dividend income from these
financial assets is included in “Other income”. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity iastrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no reclassification of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may

transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost and FVOCI.
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For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from

default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when th? expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required”to use the remaining contractual term of the financial

instrument,

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the

Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when
a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual

obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial

asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and Initial measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss or at amortized cost, as appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless théy are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held

for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii} Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized

cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. EIR
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

(iv) Derecognition of Financial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as

finance costs.

(C) Embedded Derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-

derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss. .3

(D) Offsetting financial instruments
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

3.14 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly

within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee

benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(b) Post employment benefit plans

i) Definadyonnts IAILOSDRIRRIA N S5+ AN W 1731 1R | ATPRY e [N IHES: | WS 1WA E TS b |3 B T o

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis

which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized in profit or loss.

The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions

to the plans.
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Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end,

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

3.15 Foreign Currency Transactions

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are

adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.
3.17 Share Based Payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees via the Share based long term
incentive scheme.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
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using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date represents the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Expense or credit recorded In the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is

recognized in employee benefits expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

3.18 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary equity shares are recognized as deduction
from equity.

3.19 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of Company that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. The Key Managerial Person of the Company
acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of pharmaceutical
and surgical products and hence, the Company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108

“Operating Segments”.
4, RECENT INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. Ministry of Corporate
Affairs {“MCA”) vide notification no. G.S.R. 291 (E) dated 7" May, 2025 made amendments in the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The notification explains the following:

» Exchangeable definition
» Estimating the spot exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable into another currency,

s Disclosures requirements when an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency is not

exchangeable into another currency
« Recognition of effect of initially applying the amendments

These amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1** April 2025, with
specific transitional provisions outlined.
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8.1

10

Particulars

Other financial asset
[Unsecure, considered goods)

Security deposits (at amortised cost)
Total

Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars

Deferred tax asset on account of:

Expenses provided but allowable in Income tax on payment basis
On Ind AS 116 Adjustment

Gratuity & leave encashment

Unabsorbed depreciation

Unabsorbed loss

Fair Value of depesits

Tinting ditference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged in the books
Irade Receivables

Net deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax assets/{llabllitles) recognised

Met deferred tax assets/(liabilitles) not recognised*

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.43 0.39
0.43 0.39
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(0.17) B
0,21 0.23
0.05 0.03
0.23 0.13
3.12 2.04
0.03 .
{0.04) 1.00
0.03 0.04
3.49 3.47
0.14 -
ELE 347

are expected to be used in setting off taxable profits arising in the

*The Company has unabsorbed business losses and unabsorbed depreciation which

future years from operations of the I

ling to the

, the company has Incurred losses In the previous year as well as in the current year. As a result, in the absence of reasonable

certainty of the company earning sufficlent taxable profit in the Immediate future, deferred tax asset on unabsorbed business losses and depreciation, as mentioned above, has not baen
recognized. The position will be reviewed at each reporting period and will be recognized when the reasonable certainty is established.

Note (a): Summary of deferred tax assets/(llablilities)

Particulars

Timing difference between tax depreciation and depreci 1 charged in the books
Expenses provided but allowable in income tax on payment basis

On Ind A5 116 Adjustment

Trade receivables

Gratuity & leave encashment

Unabsarbad depraciation

Unabsorbed lpss

Fair Value of deposits

Net deferred tax assets/(liability)

Particulars

Timing difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged in the books
Expenses provided but allowable in income tax on payment basis

On ind AS 116 Adjustment

Trade receivables

Gratuity & leave encashment

Unabsorbed depreciation

Unabsorbed loss

Net Net deferred tax assets/(llability)

Non current tax assets (net)
Advance income tax (Net of provision: nil ( March 31, 2024: Rs 0.01}))

Total

Inventories

At lower of cost and net realizable value
Stock in trada

Total

Trade receivable
Unsecured
-Considered good

-Considered doubtful

Less: Expected loss allowances
Total

Further classified as:
Recelvable from related parties (refer note 42)

Asat

1st April 2024

{Charged)/
Credited to P& L

(Charged)/
Credited to OCI

As at
31 March 2025

(0.01)
(0.17)
0.21
0.03
0.05

0.03

(0.01)
{0.17)
0.21
0.03
0.05
0.23
312
0.03

0.14

3.49

(Charged)/
Credited to P & L

(Charged)/
Credited to OCI

As at
31 March 2024

1.00

0.23
0.04
0.03
013
2,04

3.47

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

0.01

0.01

47.41

28,30

47.41

28.30

55.72
0.13

37.45
0.14

55.85

37,59

(0.13)

[0.14)

55,72

37.45

178

{0.21)
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Recelvable from others ’ 53.78 37.66
55.56 37.45
= Ep——

The movement in allowance for expected credit loss Is as follows:-

Opening Balance 0.13 0.04
Change in allowance for expected cradit loss during the year (0.01) 0.09
Write off during the year . - -
Closing Balance 0.13 0.13
Trade recelvables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars/ year Lk “‘?“ § 6 M::‘: ol 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 51,17 3.42 1.07 0.07 - 55.72
(il) Undisputed trade recelvable -Which have significant

Increase in credit risk - - - - - -
[iii) Undisputed trade receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
{iv) Undisg i trade ivable - considered doubtful 0.05 0.01 0.04 0.03 - 0.13
{v) Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed trade receivable - considered doubtful - - - - & -
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss {0.05) (0.01) {0.04) (0.03) - (0.13)
Total 51.17 3.42 1.07 0.07 = 55.72
There are no unhilled and not due receivables

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars/ year 2 l‘:::;: e s _year Lk 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

{i) Undisputed trade receivable - considered good 33.88 1.77 1.80 0.00 - 37.45
(il Undisputed trade receivable -Which have significant -
increase In credit risk - - . s =

(it} Undisputed trade recelvable - credit impaired - - - - - .

(iv) Undisputed trade recelvable - cons|dered doubtful 0.04 0.0 0.1 0.00 - 0.14

(v} Disputed trade receivable - considered good - - - - - -
mj_l)gpuled trade receivable - considered doubtful - - - - - -
Less Allowance for expected credit loss {0.04) (0.01) (0.09) {0.00) - (0.14)
Towl 33.88 1.77 1.80 0.00 - 37.45
As at As at
Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks
In eurrent accounts 27.88 16.03
Cash on hand 0.40 0.86
Total 28.28 16.89
—_—
Other current assets
Prepakd expenses 0.07 0.03
Advances to staff 0.03 .
Ralance with povernment authorities 117 -
Advance 1o suppler 0.65 0.01
1.92 0.04
e

Tatal
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Equity share caplital

Particulars Asat Avar

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a. Authorised share capital
100,000 Equity shares of Rs, 10 each 1.00 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00
b, Issued, subscribed and pald-up:
10,000 Eguity shares of Rs. 10 each 0.10 0.10
Tatal 0.10 0.10
¢. Reconcillation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at As at As at
the end of the year 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 Li]
Add: Issued during the year = = = -
Qutstanding at the end of the yaar 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to on vote per share held. The company declares and pays dividends in

Indian rupees. In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

e.5hares held by holding Company /ultimate holding pany and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
As at As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares % No of shares %
Holding Company
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited including shares held by nomines 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%
1. Details of shares held by shareholders holding mare than 5% of the aggrogate shares in the company
As at As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares % No of shares %
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited including shares held by nominee P 10000 100.00 10000 100.00
T MECONLIATUN OT EGUITY STares sha K @ e i anao ag My Bk As at
f. shareholding of promaters at_the end of the year.
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
I the sharehol
Name of the shareholder No. of % of Total % Change During the No. of Shares % of Total Shares % Change During
ol Shares Shares year the year
10,000 100.00 0% 10,000 100.00 0%

Entera Healthcare Solutions Limited including shares held by nominee

"Out of total 10,000 equity shares, Mr. Prabhat Agrawal holds 1 equity share .e. 0.01% of total shares, as nominee of Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited,

B Mo class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the company during the year of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

h. No class of shares have been bought back by the company during the year of five years Inmediately preceding the current year end.

Other equity

Particulars Akt ALS)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Retained Earnings
Opening balance (12.27) (3.53)
Add: Met loss for the year (6.08) (8.74)
Less: Re-measurement gain/(loss) on post employmant benefit obligaton (net of tax) - (0.01)
(18.36) (12.27)

Closing balance

Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings
This reserve represents undistributed losses of the company as on the balance sheet date. Retained earnings includes re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit abligations, net of

taxes that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss,
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16 Borrowings
(i) Unsecured, fram related parties :
Loans from related party® (Refer note 42)
Total
*The company has availed unsecured short term/ long term loan from Hol
These loans carry a interest rate of 9.00% p.a.(31 March 2024:13.00% p.a.)
17 Lease liability
At amortised cost
Lease liability { Refer Note 39)
Total
18 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 32)
Pravision for gratuity 5
Total
19 Trade payables

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

Total

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2025

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2029
Non Current Current Non Current Current
80.00 19.45 - 77.45
80.00 19.45 - 77.45
ding Company to be repayable on demand and over a period of § years, respectively,
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
3.55 2.21 5.76 1.91
3.55 2.21 5.76 1.91
0.22 0.00 0.13 0.00
0.22 0.00 0.13 0.00
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.43 -
enterprises® 29.72 6.42
30.15 6.42

Outstanding for Following years from the date of transaction

Particul

PR l.es::::n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
MSME 0.43 - - 0.43
Disputed dues - MSME - - - .
Other 2897 0.75 29.72
Disputed dues - Others - - - -
Total 29.40 0.75 - - 30.15
As at 31 March 2024

" Outstanding for Following years from the date of transaction
Particul -

Soe Les::::n g 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
MSME B = = 5
Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
Other 6.38 0.04 - 6.42
Disputed dues - Others - - . 5
Total 6.38 0.04 - - 6.42
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20

21

Disclosures required under section 22 of Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development act, 2006

Particulars LR Avat
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
{a} Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
Principal and interest 0.43 -
Total
(b} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
(c] The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay In making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. = -
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the MSMED Act.
* Refer note 42 for trade payables to related parties
Other financial liabilities
As at As at

Farman 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employee liabilities 0.60 0.34
Other payables 7.80 3.74
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (Refer note 42) 24.80 17.12
Total 33.20 21.20
Other current liabilities
Statutory due payable 0.34 1.80

0.34 1.80

Total
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22 Revenue from operation

Particulars

Sale of goods
Total

Analysis of revenues by segments:
Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products.

Revenue based on geography
Damestic

Expaort

Tatal

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time
Revenue recognition at point aver time
Tatal

231 Other income
Interest Income
Interest on unwinding ol security deposits
Interest income from bank deposits
Total

24 Purchase of stock-in-trade
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Total

2% Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Steck i leade

Less: Inventaories at the end of the year
-Stock in frade | Refer Note 10)

Net (increase)/decrease

26 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Cantr o b prosident fund and other funds
Gratuity and compensated absences expenses (refer note 32)
stall wellae expenses
Total

271 Finance costs
(i} Interest on Borrowings
On loan from holding company (Refer note 42)

[ii) Others
interest on lease liabilities (refer note 39)

Total

28 Depreclation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5 (A))

Depreciation an nght of use asset (Refer note 5 (B}
Tatal

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
255.35 189.23
255.35 189.23
255.35 189.23
255.35 189.23
255,35 189.2:
255,35 189.23
255.35 189.23
0.04 .04
0.13 9}_
0.17
254.10 180.97
254.10 180,97
-
28.30 2295
28.30 22.95
(a7.41) (28.30)
(47.41) (28.30)
(19.11) 15.35)

1047 503
046 0.17
0.08 0.06
0.37 0.35
11.38 5.61
B.52 9.26
0.66 0.92
9.18 1018
I

057 0.40
203 203
2,60 2.43
—td,
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29 Other expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended
SorHedE 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rent 0.19 -
Rates il taxes 0.01 -
Legal and professional charges 0.29 0.29
Travelling expenses 0,33 0.05
Power and fuel 0.29 0.21
Repairs and maintenance 0.41 0.17
Distribution cost 0.93 0.59
Printing and stationery ; 0.07 0.06
Communicalion expenses 0.04 0.03
Net impairment losses on trade receivables/financial assets (0.01) 0.09
Auditor's remunaration (refer note below) 0.22 0.22
Insurance 0.06 0.04
Miscellaneous expenses 0.38 0.07
Professional fees 0.10 -
Business Support services 0,29 2.36
Total 3.60 4.18

St —

i0

i

*Note . The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of taxes)

As auditor;

Statutory audit (Including Limited Review) fees 0.14 0,14
Tax awnfit 0.08 0.08
Total 0.22 0.22

——— == ==

Tax expense

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2024

Current tan
Current tax an profits for the year _ .
Adjustments for current tax of prior years
Total Current Tax =
Daterred tax expense (income) (0.14) *
(0.14) E

Total tax expense
Iview ol losses, there is no current tax expense for the year accordingly, the disclosure of reconciliation of tax expenses with accounting profit / (loss) multiplied by statutory income tax rate Is not

applicable

Farnings per share -
Lass pot share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable 1o equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

ibutable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted

Diluted earning per share amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit
average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

For the yearended  For the year ended
I
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Basic earnings /{loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year
attributable to equity holders by the welghted average number of equity shares
oulstanding during the year.

(Losshattributable to the equity holders of the company (A) (6.09) [8.74)

Weghted average number of shares issued for basic £P5 (B) 10,000 10,000

Adpustment for calculation of diluted EPS (¢ )

Weighted average number of shares issued for diluted EPS (D= B+C) 10,000 10,000

Basic EPS In Rs. Liﬂﬁﬂ {!M
(608.59) (873.53)

Diluted EPS in Rs.
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Employee benefits

. Defined contribution plans

The company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

. Provident Fund
b.

Employee State Insurance Fund
Labour Welfare Fund

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan -

For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31
Particulars
March 2025 March 2024
Contribution to provident fund 0.40 0.11
0.06 0.06

Employers contribution to employee state insurance

. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The Company has an unfunded Gratuity Scheme for its employees and gratuity liability has been provided based on the actuarial valuation done at the
year end. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the

Projected Unit Credit Method.

The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at the balance sheet date. The present value of the defined benefit obligations

and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the detalls of the employee benefit obligation as at balance sheet

date:
For the year ended 31  For the year ended 31
SrNo. Defined benefit plans March 2025 March 2024
Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) (Unfunded)
| Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss during the year:
Current service cost 0.07 0.05
Past service cost -
Expected return on plan assets . -
Net interest cost / (income) on the net defined benefit liabllity / (asset) 0.01 0.01
Total expenses 0.08 0.06
Il Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to demographic assumption changes in defined benefit
obligations . v
Actuarial (gains) / losses due to financial assumption changes in defined benefit
U7 obligations T 0.01 0.00
Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to experience on defined benefit obligations (0.00) 0.01
Total expenses 0.00 0.01
Il Netasset /(liability) recognised as at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.21 0.13
Funded status [surplus / (deficit)] 0.21 0.13
i Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 0.13 0.06
Current service cost 0.07 0.05
Interest cost 0,01 0.01
Actuarial {gains) / loss 0.00 0.01
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 0.21 0.13
IV Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Expected cash flows over future years (valued on undiscounted basis):
151 Following Year 0.00 0.00
2nd Following Year 0.00 0.00
3rd Following Year 0.06 0.00
0.05 0.04

Ath Following Year o
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vi

U oS o oo

5th Following Year 0.03
Sum of Years 6 To 10 0.11
Sum of Years 11 and above 0.09
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
0.21
increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year
(i) +1% increase in discount rate . ¥ {0.01)
{ii) -1% decrease in discount rate 0.01
(iii) +1% increase in rate of salary increase 0.01
{0.01)

(iv) -1% decrease in rate of salary increase

Sensitivity analysis method

0.03
0.08
0.06

0.13

0.01
0.01
0.01
0.01

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that

the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit

obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensit ivity analysis from prior years.

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 6.66% 7.13%

Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%

Rate of employee turnover 20.00% 20.00%

Martality rate during employment IALM (2012-14) Ultimate  1ALM (2012-14) Ultimate
58 years 58 years

Retirement age
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35

36

Contingent liabilities & commitments
i) There are no contingent liabilities & commitments as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

ii} The Company will continue to assess the impact of further developments relating to retrospective application of Supreme Court judgement dated
February 28, 2019 clarifying the definition of 'basic wages' under Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and deal with it
accordingly. In the assessment of the management, the aforesald matter is not likely to have a significant im pact and accordingly, no provision has been

made in these Standalone Financial Statements.

Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of Company that engages In business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including

revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CoDM”) of the
company. The wholetime director of the company acts as the (CODM). The company operates only in one business segment i.e. tr ading of pharmaceutical
and surgical products and hence, the company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Capital management
For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity

holders of the campany. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to safeguard the company’s ability to remain as a going concern
and maximise the shareholder value.The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. The
company includes within net debt, interest bearing borrowing and lease liabilities net of cash and cash equivalent as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024, the company has negative total equity. The company has negative total equity. The company is also having financial support from its holding

company for its working capital requirement.

: As at As at

Particulars .
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Borrowings
Long term borrowings 80.00
short term borrowings 19.45 77.45
Less: cash and cash equivalents (28.28) (16.89)
Adjusted net debt 71.17 60.56
Total equity (18.26) (12.17)

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio®
'Nat computed for current year and previous year in the view of negative denominator

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure In these financial statements,




Swaml Medisolutions Private Limited
MNotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
[Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

37 Fair value measurements
A, Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial
liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying Amaount
Particulars FUTPL FvToct Amortized Total
Cost
Financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2025 %
MNan-current financial assets
Other financial assets - 0.43 0.43
Current financial assets
Trade receivables - - 55.72 55.72
Cash and cash equivalents - - 28.28 28.28
Total - - 84.43 84.43
Mon-current financial liabilities N
Borrowings - a 80.00 80.00
Lease liabilities - - 355 1.55
Current financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - 221 22
Borrowings - - 19.45 19.45
Trade payables x + 30.15 30.15
Other financial liabilities - - 33.20 33.20
Total - - 168.56 168.56
Carrying Amount
Particulars FVTPL FvToc Amortized Total
Cost
Financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024
Non-current financial assets
Other financial assets - - 0.39 0.39
Current financial assets ‘
Trade receivables - - 37.45 37.45
Cash and cash equivalents - - 16.89 16.89
Total - - 54,73 54.73
Non-current financial liabilities
Borrowings - = N -
Lease liabilities - . 5.76 5.76
Current financlal liabilites
Lease liabilities e E 191 191
Borrowings - - 77.45 77.45
Trade payables - - 642 6.42
Other financial liabilities - - 21,20 21.20
: - 112.74 112.74

Total

B. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, deposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including other current bank balances and other
liabilities including deposits, creditors for capital expenditure, etc. are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to current and short term nature of such

halances

C. Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The

hierarchy gives the highest priority to guoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to uncbservable
nputs [Level 3 measurements),

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments and mutual funds that have quoted
price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting year.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market Is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity

securities included in level 3,
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Financial Risk Management
The Company has in place comprehensive risk management policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate varlous risks pertaining to its

business. Along with the risk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is
maintained to align with the philesophy of the Company. Together they help in achieving the business goals and objectives consistent with the Company's
strategies to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies and practices. The Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management policy and internal control system. The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and
axecute its business strategies.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

* Credit risk

* Liquidity risk and

* Market risk

(A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and

arises principally from the Company's trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

i) Trade and Other Receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue-earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by

the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms In the normal course of business.

Summary of the compay’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

Particulars Axat at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured

-Considered good 55.72 37.45
-Considered doubtful 0.13 0.14
Gross trade receivables 55.85 37.59
Less: Impairment loss (0.13) (0.14)
Net trade receivables 55.72 37.45

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss as per Ind AS 109. The Company computes the expected credit loss allowance
as per simplified approach for trade recelvables based on available external and Internal credit risk factors such as the ageing of its dues, market
information about the customer and the Company's historical experience for customers, The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance for trade recelvables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience

and is based on the ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

ii. Cash and bank balances
The company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of fis. 28.28 Millions at 31 March 2025 (Rs. 16.89 Millions at 31 March 2024). The

same are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating. Also, company invests its short term surplus funds in bank fixed
deposit which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore does not expose the company to credit risk,

iii. Others
Apart from tiade receivables loans and cash and bank balances , the company has no other financial assets which carries any significant credit risk.

(B) Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its fiabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without Incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected

cash flows.

—ral
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(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include

contractual interest payments.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than

31 March 2025 . One year or less One to five years F— Total

Lease liabilities 2.66 3.82 = 6.48
Borrowings 19.45 80.00 = 99.45
Trade payables 30.15 - - 30.15
Other financial liabilities 33.20 - - 33.20
Total 85.46 83.82 - 169.28
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities More than

31 March 2024 One year or less One to five years five years Total

Lease liabilities 2,57 6.48 - 9.05
Borrowings 77.45 - - 77.45
Trade payables 6.42 - = 6.42
QOther financial Nabilities 21.20 - - 21.20
Total 107.64 6.48 - 114.12

(C) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the company’s income or

the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management Is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.The company’s exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below.

(i} Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates, The company caters mainly

to the Indian Market . Most of the transactions are denominated in the company's functional currency i.e. Rupees. Hence the company is not materially

exposed to foreign currency risk,

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. There

are no borrowings in the company and hence not exposed to interest rate risk.

Particulars i o

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borraowings - -
Fixed rate borrowings 99.45 77.45
Sensitivity:
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would have following impact on profit after tax and equity
Particulars AEa AR

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points
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Disclosure related to Leases
Company as Lessee
Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year
As at Asat
Particulars 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year g 6.95 877
Additions * 0.
Depreciation charge lor the year {2.03, (2.03)
Balance at the end of the year 1;9_1 6.95
Change in carrying value of lease liabllities at the end of the reporting year
Balance at the beginning of the year 768 .06
Addelitions 0.22
Payment of lease liabilities {2.57) {2.52)
Finance cost during the year 0.66 0.92
Balance at the end of the year 577 7.68
Maturity analysis of lease labilities
Less than one yoear 2.66 257
One ta live yoars 3.82 6.48
Pare than L years - .
Toral undiscounted lease liabilities at reparting year 6.48 9.05
tease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at the year ended 5.76 7.97
.
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
Interest on lease labilities 0.66 0.92
Arnatisation of right to use assets 2.03 2,03
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases 2.57 2.52
= e —
Statemant of unhedged foreign currency exposure:
As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars Amount In USD Amount In Rs. Amount In USD Amount in Rs.
0.00 0.00 - 0.00

Aalvance lo vendors

Impairment testing of Goodwill

Gowdwill is tested for impairment annually on 31 March every year. Company aperates in single segment/ CGLU.

Ihe recoverable amount of a CGL is based on higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use. Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a iiability in an orderly
transaction between market participant at measurement date. Value in use Is present value of future cash flow expected to be derived from assets (CGU). The value In use is estimated using discounted
canlh Hlows ovier o year of 5 years and Cash flows beyond 5 years is estimated by capitalising the future maintainable cash flows by an appropriate capitall rate and then d | using

drscuunt rate. This Lair value measurement was categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on inputs in the valuation technigue used.

ions have been i based on past. and after Idering the fi budgets/forecasts p fad by the
amount are set out below. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management's assessment of future

Qperating marging and growth rates for the five year cash fiow proj
[REGET 1, Other key pt used in the esti wn of the

trends e the eeievant industry and have been based on historical data from both external and intarnal sources.
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Tacount ate 13.27% 18.44%
Pearmireal value grawtl rate - 5.00% 5. 00%
15.00% 15.00%

Revenue growlth rati

With regard to assessment of recoverable amount, no reasonably possible change in any of the above sey assumptions would cause the carrylng amount of the CGU to exceed their recoverable amount,

used and discount rate applied. Company has concluded that, given the significant headroom that exists, and the results
would cause the carrying value of goodwlll to excead its value In use,

The Compary has also performed Itivity analysis calc on the p
of the sensitivity analysis performed, there Is no significant risk that bie ch in any key




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a2 Related Party Disclosures

A. Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Description of relationship
Holding Company Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited

Fallow subsidiary companies Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limite

Avenir Lifecare Pharma Private Limited

Barros Enterprises Private Limited

Calcutta Medisolutions Private Limited

Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Chethana Pharma Private Limited

Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited

City Pharma Distributors Private Limited

CPD Pharma Private Limited

Curever Pharma Private Limited

Devi Pharma Wellness Private Limited

Dh varl Super Speciality Private Limited

Entero RS Enterprises Private Limited

G.5.Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited

Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited

| Getwell Medicare Solutlon Private Limited

Gourav Medical Agencies Private Limited

laggl Enterprises Private Limited

Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited

Mew RRPD Private Limited

Mew Siva Agencies Private Limited

Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Peerless Blotech Private Limited

R § M Pharma Private Limited

Rada Medisolutions Private Limited

S.5. Pharma Traders Private Limited

Sal pharma distributors Private Limited

Saurashtra Medisolutions Private Limited

Sesha Balajee Medisolutions Private Limited

Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited

Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Sri Rama Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited

Srinlvasa Lifecare Private Limited

Sundarlal Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Suprabhat Pharmaceuticals Private Limited

SVMED Solutions Private Limited

SVS Lifesciences Private Limited

Swami Medisolutions Private Limited

Vasavi Medicare Selutions Private Limited

Western Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Ujjain Maheshwari Pharma Distributors Private Limited

Quromed Lifesclences Private Limited

Rimedio Pharma Private Limited

Zennx Software Solutions Private Limited

Name of the related party

Jaswinder Singh
Sambit Mohanty (Resipned w.e.f, 22 September 2023)
| H
Ky anaguimt Personiiel and deelr NS | narad taisinl {Appointed w.e.f. 22 September 2023
Alikesh Awasthi
Sudeep Kaur Relative of Jaswinder Singh

Relatives of Director

Mr. Sachin Jaiswal Relative of Sharad Jaiswal
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B. Details of related party transactions:

For the year ended | For the year ended
f the relat
Nature of Transaction Name of the related party 31 March 2028 31 March 2034
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 8.10 4.51
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 6.22 1.76
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 3.28 0.23
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited - 1.48
P i "
wrchass ot siock by rade Jagal Enterprises Private Limited 023 0.48
Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited 3.08 0.55
Peerless Biotech Private Limited 0.17 -
SV5 Lifesciences Private Limited 1.35 0.06
Sale of stock in trade Millennium Medisolutions Private Limited - 0.13
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.21
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 1.30 -
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.59 0.62
Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.22 -
5V5 Lifesciences Private Limited 3.64 -
Entero R.5.Enterprises Private Lll;nited 0.05 -
Novacare Healthcare Solutiéns Private Limited 0.13 0.02
[ Commission expense |Tanmehar Singh 0.27 - |
[i= Rent Expenses |Sudeep Kaur 1.50 144 |
| Loan Taken [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limi‘ad 22.00 7.00 |
| Cross-Charge* [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 3.29 2,36 |
| Interest Expenses [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 8.52 9,26 |
[ Remuneration Paid JJaswinder Singh 144 0.14 |
*includes in salary amounting to INR 3.00 Million for the year ended 31st March 2025
€. Details of balances outstanding for related party transactions:
As at As at
N f the related
Singir ot ansaction et S reeee 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 9.52 3.85
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 271 033
Galaxystar Pharma Distributors Private Limited 133 1.33
Trade paysile Mlllgnnlum l\:!edlsoluthons Private Limited (0.34) (0.37)
laggi Enterprises Private Limited (0.85) (0.59)
Peerless Biotech Private Limited 0.14 B
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (0.24) {0.80)
SVS Lifesciences (0.24) (0.49)
Atreja Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.02 0.09
SVS Lifesciences {0.08) 0.49
Jaggi Enterprises Private Limited 1.40 .
Trade receivables Sri Parshva Pharma Distributors Private Limited 0.00
Entero R.S.Enterprises Private Limited 0.06 -
Novacare Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.15 0.02
Chhabra Healthcare Solutions Private Limited 0.23 (0.80)
[ Rent expenses [Sudeep Kaur 0.12 0.12
[ Borrowing [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 99.45 77.45 |
[ Cross-Charge [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 6.08 236 |
[ lnterest payable [Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 24.80 17.12 |




Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

D, Key management personnel compensation:
For the year ended  For the year ended
ShE 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Director remuneration;
Salaries and allowances

1.44 0.14

Key managerial personnel who are under the employment of the company are entitled to post employment benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 -
‘Employee Benelits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not

included above. Gratuity has been computed for the company as a whole and hence excluded,

E. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and settlement accurs in cash. This assessment Is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related

party and the market in which the related party operates.




Swami Medisolutions Private Limited
Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a3 Ratio analysis .
Partigulars Numerator D Inator 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 | % Varlance Reason for varlance
L Due to reclassification of borrawing in
’__“”_u skt Current assets Current liabilities 1.56 0.76 105.55% |current and non current,
b Debt-equity ratio Short term and leng term Shareholder's equity (5.45) (6.36) (14.37%) =
c) Debt service coverage Due to decrease in loss and increase In
s Earning before interest and tax Debt service 0.58 0.37 56.34%| sales
k ity Rat
o) Return an equity Ratio Net profit after tax Average shareholder squity (0.40) (0.58) _!.30““' :
e} Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 1.55 1.79 {13.26%) -
1] Trade receivables turnover - ’
“atio Net credit salas. Trade receivables 1.37 117 17.12% -
radle payabl it ar

}:: Trade payables turnow Credit purchases Average trade payable Due to increase in trade payable and
i 3.47 6.21 |  (44.06%)|incrase in credit purchase

h) Net capital turnover ratio Sales waking capital (Current Due to reclassification of borrowing in

Assets-Current Liabilities) 5.32 (7.25)]  (173.41%)[current and non current.
4 e ) Due to decrease in loss and increase in
t it ratu
st Net profit after tax Net sales {0.02) (0.05)] (52.32%)|sales
Due to decrease In loss and Increase in

(1 Return on capital
»mployed |Earning before Interest and tax Average c.pmpmpjgyed 0.03 0.01 us.ssaﬂulgs

*Return on investment ratio is not relevant for the company as it does not any investment,

Other statutory information:

1i] Details of benami property held
Ihe Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

!

&

[} Relationships with struck off companies
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off,
[iii} Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Campany does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyo~d the statutory period.

{iv] Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Campany has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

il Uilisation of borrowings availed fram banks and financial institutions
The Lompany has not advanced or extended loan or invested funds to any other person(s) or entityjies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding That the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the pany (Ultimate ficlaries) or

[b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(1] provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

wil Undisclosed Income
The Eompany does not have any undisclosed Income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income

{vii) withull defaulter
Tha Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or by any Bovernment authorities,

[viii} Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause [87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

lix] Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting Impact on current or previous financial year.

ix} Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
The title deeds of all the immovable properties (sther than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease g ts are duly

during the current and previous year.

d In favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company

[xil Valuation of PPE, intangible assets and Investment property
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equioment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year,

i) Audit Trail

rted by the € ies {Accounts) A d

e Rhnistey of Corporate Atfairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 |
fulis 2011 requining companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every
‘ransaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of accounts alang with the date whén such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trall cannot be disabled.

“ompany has used a software application for revenue, billing and recelvables, purchases and payables and Inventory management during the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recarding audit trall

‘edit log) facility either at application level or at database level.




Swa mi Medisolutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amaunt in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
(xiil) Backup of books of accounts
The company uses software / IT applications to maintain its books of accounts and other books and papersin electronic mode (“Electoronic records”). During the year, the Company has maintaned backups of
fhiese electionie racords on server physically located in india on daily basis, as required by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended).

A% the financial staternent were authorised for issue by the company’s board of directors on May 24, 2025,

46 Srevious year figures have been regrouped, reclassified, where necessary, to conform to current year's presentation

43 per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
singh Chhabra & Co | Medisolutions Private Limited
Zlrm Registration No.: 012127C Fo' “‘ml Mi’m I‘ TU51909PB2021PTCO53818
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